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Independent Auditors’ Report

e
EY=x

To the members of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua
Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 147 to 235, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

B 2B AR S

BEAXERARIFAIMLBKRR
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B 2B AR

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or [.pss
mEEmK

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE_T-RG+-_A=1+—"HILEE

2015 2014
—_ZE—FHF —E—F
Notes (US$’000) (US$'000)
HiaF (F=;) (F=71)
Revenue SHEWA 5 650,131 664,586
Cost of sales SHER A (448,705) (466,815)
Gross profit EF 201,426 197,771
Other income and gains E A UA Rz 5 42,717 23,886
Fair value gain on an investment property & &3 e A T E Nz 58 1,127
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (7,292) (7,206)
Administrative expenses EIEE A (104,855) (85,053)
Other expenses Hih & 9) (2,433)
Finance costs B%ER 7 (7,754) (12,136)
Share of profits of an associate DE—KEEE R R 961 4,856
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BANER 6 125,252 120,812
Income tax expense Frisif X 10 (12,703) (27,722)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 112,549 93,090
Attributable to owners of the parent BAREA AFEML 112,549 93,090
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREEREREA 12
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhEEREF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT:
Basic HAR
— For profit for the year — FRE US$0.11 US$0.11
0.11% 7T 0.11%7T
Diluted #E
— For profit for the year — FRE US$0.11 US$0.11
0.11%7T 0.11%7T
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Consolidatedétatement of Comprehensive Income
GEEHWEER oo,

2015 2014
—E-hF —EF—mF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F=7x) (F%=7T)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR®EA 112,549 93,090
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Htt 2 EEE
Other comprehensive losses to be reclassified REZ BB EF D EEEZRA

to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hith 2 EERE :
Exchange differences on translation of WMEBINETSE R INE = HE

foreign operations (88,669) (3,998)
Net other comprehensive losses to be REZBEERDEEEREN

reclassified to profit or loss in HEh2HEEFE

subsequent periods (88,669) (3,998)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREM2EER - NRHE

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (88,669) (3,998)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEBHRHE

FOR THE YEAR 23,880 89,092
Attributable to owners of the parent S REHEB ARG 23,880 89,092
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

31 December 2015
—ET-RF+-A=+—H

e ISR R

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—Z2-RF —EF—mF
+t=A=+t—-A +=A=+—H
Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)
Htat (F%x) (F=7T)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NGRS 13 629,180 568,626
Investment property KEYE 14 180,542 191,533
Prepaid land lease payments TEfS T B EFRIE 15 22,120 24,194
Intangible assets mLEE 16 8,516 14,708
Investment in an associate REEZ N RIHIRE 17 40,833 42,030
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 18 217,214 230,512
Long term prepayments RHETERIZRIE 10,806 8,237
Deferred tax assets RIETIR A E 27 4,692 9,191
Total non-current assets ERENE EARRE 1,113,903 1,089,031
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =g 19 107,081 93,988
Trade and notes receivables B S IEUGRIA R EWEE 20 103,822 107,509
Prepayments, deposits and TENFRIA - e REAERGK
other receivables 18 21 9,408 7,007
Due from related parties JRE W5 B 75 R IR 33(e) 25,282 43,178
Pledged and time deposits AR E TR 22 41,796 2,583
Cash and cash equivalents ReFREEEY 22 510,441 646,773
Total current assets MENE EE M 797,830 901,038
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B SN RIA 23 66,280 63,532
Other payables, advances from H b FRIE - TAUBRFK
customers and accruals NEHE R 24 84,474 72,310
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T ERITE R 25 42,750 81,690
Government grants BT D 26 53,881 63,885
Due to related parties FE (<} B 5 kI8 33(e) 8,965 25,006
Income tax payable FERTFR1S R 21,576 23,148
Total current liabilities mENBERTE 277,926 329,571
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERRE 519,904 571,467
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBEE
LIABILITIES 1,633,807 1,660,498

Continued #4&/...
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR R 3R

31 December 2015
“T—AF+=-A=+—H

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
—2-RF —EF—mF
t=A=t+—-8 +=A=+-A
Notes (US$’000) (US$°000)
it (F%x) (F=71)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABRRBAR
LIABILITIES 1,633,807 1,660,498
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTERITER 25 137,871 183,031
Deferred tax liabilities BLETIBAE 27 5,246 11,988
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEERE 143,117 195,019
Net assets FEE 1,490,690 1,465,479
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners BAREE AEGER
of the parent
Share capital A& 7N 28 1,550,164 1,550,164
Reserves G 30 (59,474) (84,685)
Total equity R HERE 1,490,690 1,465,479
\J k
Suxin Zhang JunYe
RED =1t 3
Director Director
EZE EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEHTRER

Year ended 31 December 2015

BE_ZT-—hFt+_A=t—HLFE

2015 2014
— —F-lEF
Notes US$°000 US$'000
iz EJT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHMBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax Tt AT a2 ) 125,252 120,812
Adjustments for: BLAT S IREH AR -
Finance costs VEER 7 7754 12,136
Share of profits of an associate PIE—KBEE R R (961) (4,856)
Interest income FEWA 5 (7,856) (4,592)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME  MENEREER
plant and equipment and prepaid L/{&ﬁﬁifﬂﬂ‘é?k
land lease payments Blkzs 5 (401) (402)
Depreciation Tﬁ% 13 73,879 71,613
Changes in fair value of an investment & &Y% A (A &)
property 14 (58) (1,127)
Write-down of inventories to net WoRF B2 Al #IRFE
realisable value 6 2,410 3,823
(Reversal)/provision of impairment B 5 EW A M E A
of trade receivables and FEW R IERE
other receivables (B[R, B 6 (154) 246
Impairment of items of property, ME - BB K&
plant and equipment IH B A 13 5,162 =
Amortisation of intangible assets EH B EHE 16 4,461 12,154
Recognition of prepaid land lease TEf T AR EFRIEMER
payments 15) 708 721
Equity-settled share option expense AR A E MBS 29 1,331 -
211,527 210,528
(Increase)/decrease in inventories e Ggm, md (14,563) 1,418
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 EUGRIA K W E R
notes receivables A (35hn) 3,991 (1,984)
Increase in prepayments, deposits TENFIE - e REM
and other receivables FEU TR IBIE AN (2,414) (62)
Decrease in amounts due from JrE Uk RS 75 SR IR R
related parties 17,896 5,054
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits 2B F R (38:40) 787 (511)
Increase in trade payables B 5 e FRIEE AN 2,748 3,305
Increase in other payables, advances E b FIE - TRURBRFK
from customers and accruals TEE R 6,556 9,334
(Decrease)/increase in government grants BT &R CRl4>) 1800 (6,799) 652
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to  FE(SBAEE 5 7RIE
related parties CRi),/ 1 (16,041) 2,106
Cash generated from operations RETHEENERES 203,688 229,840
Income tax paid ERFTER (15,911) (8,100)
Net cash flows generated from RETHFABRENERHE
operating activities 187,777 221,740
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Consolidated Statement of Casl] Flows
g oo e SR ANIH SR E R

2015 2014
—E-0F —E—mE
Notes US$°000 US$'000
HtaE FET FET

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFEBFERERE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received B F & 7,809 4,592
Dividend received from an associate W B — B A BRI E - 8,186
Purchases of items of property, plant EBEME  BERK 1%15 =i

and equipment (181,916) (76,054)
Purchases of items of intangible assets EE®EZEEER (1,167) (4,105)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - BERKEEE

property, plant and equipment and AN EmEE

intangible assets FrfSs0R 70 72
Recovery of loans from an associate BN THQ@E%’K = 24,490
Purchases of available-for-sale BEIHLERE

investments - (57,199)
Receipt of government grants W R BT #E B 7,546 3,088
Increase in time deposits T HATE R AN (40,000) =
Net cash flows used in investing RETHFARSHRETFE

activities (207,658) (96,930)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METDRERSRE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT D FTS B - 331,730
Share issue expenses RHETER = (11,562)
Interest paid BEAFIE (7,800) (12,136)
New bank loans FIBIRITER 38,961 -
Repayment of bank loans EBIRITER (119,854) (101,301)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated BEES (FrA) g

from financing activities HEREFHE (88,693) 206,731
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE iﬁﬁ&iﬂﬁ%ﬁ%

IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W),/ IR (108,574) 331,541
Cash and cash equivalents i%ﬂfﬁi NIREEEY

at beginning of year 646,773 317,045
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEERFETE - FEE

changes, net (27,758) (1,813)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S XEERHEZEY

END OF YEAR 22 510,441 646,773
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBSESENERDT

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITES 22 202,250 439,556
Non-pledged time deposits with original  PESRREIEAR DR

maturity of less than three months = (@ A A E KR

when acquired TE BAfE R 308,191 207,217
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in =~ BN R RIS RERT

the statement of financial position and 5|4 RIRSEEY)

in the statement of cash flows 22 510,441 646,773
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Notes to Financial Statements

E 2 31D ber 2015
— ecemper
/\ZI- ﬂjJ ﬁ% M;J- FIJE —Z=—AF+-HA=+—H

Corporate and Group Information

Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 21 January
2005. The registered office of the Company is located at Room
2212, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong
Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of semiconductor
products.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate
parent of the Company are Shanghai Alliance Investment
Ltd. (“SAIL”) and INESA Holding Group (“INESA”), which are
state-owned companies established in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”), supervised by the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission (“SASAC”).

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

REAREEER

EUFBRERAA ([ARALD B—
KR _ZERF-A_+—BEEBEF
MARZEBARAR - RARBZMMRE
BABETFREBE12HEERITHLO
2212%F

ARAMERRYH/REER - RF
N ARBNFRARIEIENELERE
m A EE K HE -

EE0A  ARANEATRBRER
ARALSHAREBRAR ([ L5
M) R EEEEER (£E) ARAF
((HEEM)) - LEHAREEEEDY
BREEARKME ([RE]) Kt
MEAAEEEEREER (AEAS))
EENEEAT -

FEAFARANES
RRBETFRANFEAT ¢

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  attributable to the
registration and registered share \_Compagy N
business capital (000) FAAEEREZEDL

Name ML, ORTLEE/ Direct Indirect Principal activities

£ B RER AEfRA (F) E# A FEERED

Grace Semiconductor Cayman Islands US$0.001 100% - Investment holding
Manufacturing Corporation HERE 0.001%7T 100% - REE
(“Grace Cayman”)*

Shanghai Huahong Grace Mainland China RMB5,865,538 100% - Manufacture and sale of
Semiconductor Manufacturing ~ FREIARE AR™5,865,53870 100% - semiconductor products
Corporation (“HHGrace”)** HFEREEFERER

PEENEN+ERELERR AT
([ZEmEAN])

Shanghai Huajie IC Technology Mainland China RMB41,385 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Service Co., Ltd. el N3 AR¥41,3857T = 100%  semiconductor products
(“Shanghai Huajie”)*** FERBEVTERBER

HEEGESHRITRBERAA
([ HEaE])

Global Synergy Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$10 100% - Trading
(“GST")* e 107T 100% - E5

HHGrace Semiconductor USA, USA - 100% - Sales office
Inc.* ESE] - 100% - HEMER

HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Japan JPY10,000 100% - Sales office
Co., Ltd.* A 10,0008 100% - HERER
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Corporate and Group Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

*  No audited financial statements have been prepared for these
entities for the year ended 31 December 2015, as these entities
were not subject to any statutory audit requirement under the
relevant rules and regulations in their jurisdictions of incorporation.

>k

On 24 January 2013, HHGrace was established to consolidate
the assets and liabilities of Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics
Co., Ltd. (“HHNEC”) and Shanghai Grace Semiconductor
Manufacturing Corporation (“Grace Shanghai”). This consolidation
has been substantially completed except for certain administrative
formalities which still need to be fulfilled before the deregistration
of HHNEC and Grace Shanghai.

Shanghai Huajie is a domestic company established under PRC
law.

**** Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for an investment property which has
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in United States dollars (“US$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousands except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2015. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).
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2.1Basis of Preparation (continued) 21REEE (F)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the above revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) came into
effect for the first time during the current financial year. The
main impact to the financial statements is on the presentation
and disclosure of certain information in the financial statements.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

A E A R B A AU TE
45 814 7K 22 R 03 2] R A 16 3T B B
TR -

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BB RS YER TE T A?
el
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets BRI ISR %R R A B A
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its FIORLREAGST LA EE
Associate or Joint Venture' JEBIFE 2857 (&3] WAl A
K)(ZF——F) EHEL RN
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the BB RS YER REERE — (E/F
HKFRS 12 and Consolidation Exception’ F105% - HABYK  AEALH
HKAS 28 (2011) WEERFE12%R  AIIMER
B EETER
285 (IBF] )
—E——4)
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of BB RS YER WorE B B E R
Interests in Joint Operations’ F115% (IBFTA) AT R
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® BRI ISR %R EE AR 3
FE1455
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with ERYIEREER FEAAME?
Customers? F155%
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative’ ERGRTERIE19  HEAE
CCHEN)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable BAESITERFE16R AEIITER
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and REAEETAER] V- S YN0
Amortisation’ #3855 (BT A) BT
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants’ BEGRTERIE 165 B £EH
and HKAS 41 REASFAER 1@y
Fa15% (IBETA)
Amendments to Equity Method in Separate HE2EER] VAAvA ) & 230
HKAS 27 (2011) Financial Statements’ F275%% (BEIA) HEm %
—E——%)
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of —FE——Fx ZIRBRBU B
2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs' ZE—OFER HEERIRERT
H)F B2
" Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 T ORZEFE-ANF—A—HRZERERF
JE BT ARG
2 FEffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 2 REF-NF—-—A—HRZEFIEHF

EHRIAEAX

HEXR-F—NF—HA—AXZEH
5 HFZ RS BRI BB R
R B FEAERL - AL AR A S

3 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual 3
financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group
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2.3Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

While the adoption of some of the new and revised HKFRSs
may result in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments is expected to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position, except the
followings:

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply
to revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of an associate is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associate is included as part of the Group’s investment in an
associate.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment property at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

Q4B RS HEBE (&)

DV ETE

AEEREREMRIZ A FEFERE
WE - RFEENGFERMSZ2EEZ
FMHBEFX ST s EEEMKIH
ERMIEZAEMINNER - FERQ
FERBRROEEEXERAENRS
REEXABNIENSH (ERAE
EHENBERAT) RENTHET - =
ERRAMNTSAR/AEEEZENT
%o BRMB2LBEERRELEN S
1% BREHBENAFEEATSZ
HELSBEESXRBEEEMBMRRKE -

FEMEENATEAEGT LTSS
HEBEEANESIBERRERER
ETEREERARRSBERKERSE
B3 — B M52 BEE M AIE QBN &M

N
BE °

AEEFHH AR RERTEHER
i IRE THBIBTERTE L&
ENAEBRAERE ABE O BAERS
TRBREARE

NPERMBERRERLRENMEE
ERAE HAERYAEQFEREM
FEEANREERE ARERZTEA
FEBEDHE

F1R — HRBEXRENERTS
RIS RE CRIGHE)

g2 — RAYLATENEMEEBE
RO EE S EEAERRZE
ERm A BB ERM

3R — RAYLATEAEMEEBE
RO T A BRSEEEREA
BURH S ERT

Annual Report 2015 =2 —aFEEHRE 161



Notes to Fingpcial Statements
B RS R RE oo

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2AERSTTHEBE (&)

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment property), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’'s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(iy the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of

the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv

—

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi

=

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2AERSTTHEBE (&)

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3.8%
Plant and machinery 9.5% — 19.0%
Office equipment 19.0%
Motor vehicles 19.0%
Leasehold improvements 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal
or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the assets is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment property

Investment property is interest in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such property is measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Process technology licence and software

Process technology licence and software are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years of
the underlying products, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the
statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for
loans and in administrative expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income
in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until
the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the assets have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to other expenses in the statement of
profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.
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(continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables, advances from customers
and accruals, amounts due to related parties and interest-
bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis, and
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2AERSTTHEBE (&)

(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2AERSTTHEBE (&)

(continued)

Government grants (continued)

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no
or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a
qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the government
loans is determined using the effective interest rate method,
as further explained in the accounting policy for “Financial
liabilities” above. The benefit of the government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and
the proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and
released to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership and title have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, when the service has been
rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 29 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. In prior
years, final dividends proposed by the directors were classified
as a separate allocation of retained earnings within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Following the implementation of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), proposed final dividends are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US dollars, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
All differences arising on settlement of translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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24 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associate are currencies other than the US dollar. As at the end
of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into US dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into US dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into US
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into US dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3. Significant Accounting, Estimates and

Assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of non-financial assets

In determining if an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the impairment no longer exists, management has to
exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly
in assessing:

(a) whether an event has occurred that may affect asset value
or such an event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence;

(b) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continuing use of the asset or
derecognition; and

(c) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments carried at cost

In determining if an available-for-sale investment carried at cost
is impaired or the event previously causing the impairment no
longer exists, management has to exercise judgement in the
area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing:

(a) whether an event has occurred that may affect the value
of available-for-sale investment carried at cost or such an
event affecting the value of available-for-sale investment
carried at cost has not been in existence;
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3. Significant Accounting, Estimates and 3. EEEst T RER (E)

Assumptions (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale investments carried at cost

(continued)

(b) whether the carrying value of an available-for-sale
investment carried at cost can be supported by the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continuing operation of the investee; and

(c) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.

Lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.

Classification between investment property and owner-
occupied property

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some property comprises a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease,
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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3. Significant Accounting, Estimates and 3. EEEst T RER (E)

Assumptions (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
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3. Significant Accounting, Estimates and
Assumptions (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment property

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
any existing lease and other contracts and (when possible)
by external evidence such as current market rents for
similar properties in the same location and condition,
and using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of
the cash flows.

The carrying amount of the investment property as at 31
December 2015 was US$180,542,000 (2014: US$191,533,000).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note
14 to the financial statements.
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4. Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into one
single business unit that includes primarily the manufacture
and sale of semiconductor products. Management reviews the
consolidated results when making decisions about allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group.
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented.

The principal assets employed by the Group are located in
Shanghai, the PRC. Therefore, no segment information based
on the geographical location of assets is presented for the year.

Revenues are attributed to geographic areas based on the
location of customers. Revenues regarding geographical
segments based on the location of customers for the year are
presented as follows:
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Brn TECRHEENRHEEFERE
e EEEEEL D HEEJJ?E%EE%%”
LA EERRBEZEFEESA
- WD EBAAT o

EE

A5 B 0 A T o L3
B R AR IR BRF 2515
AR -

HIE I G WA TR E P FE S
oo FRIBEFP ARSI D H R D H
BRWRAZZIT

2015 2014
=T—-HF —T—mF
(US$000) (US$'000)
(F%r) (F=mT)
China (including Hong Kong) HE (BIEEH) 358,896 356,412
United States of America ERERE B 123,716 138,148
Asia (excluding China and Japan) M (MEREFRBE KR AA) 52,844 66,556
Europe BOM 61,648 60,488
Japan B 53,027 42,982
650,131 664,586

Information about major customers FREXEEFHNER

No revenue amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
was derived from sales to a single customer for the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

Eﬁz%\; T—RAF+A=1+—HLEFE

mUHE-—FXPHIEEMS M&m%%ﬁ
%KEIH&)\E’HO%IJZLAL(_?
Fm) e
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5. WA ~ Hfblg A R 2
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, WARFRNGBREERBZITNENE
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, the value HEEMRBEEFE  MREREHEER
of services rendered and gross rental income received and NRIEEMED W REKHASBAR
receivable from investment property during the year. ¥ o
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: HWA ~ A RKZH ST T -

2015 2014
—E-HEF —T—PF
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%r) (F=5T)
Revenue WA
Sale of goods HEEm 650,131 664,586
Other income HAg A
Rental income HEWA 13,167 13,270
Interest income FLEHA 7,856 4,592
Government subsidies IEgiag T 9,966 663
Sale of scrap materials tHEREE 442 466
Rendering of services RAEARTS 444 1,081
Others Hih 2,406 3,412
34,281 23,484
Gains Wz
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE  BEMKREEE
plant and equipment and prepaid land VAR TE T b & R IE 8
lease payments ek 401 402
Exchange gain NG B 5 W 2 8,035 =
8,436 402
42,717 23,886
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6. Profit Before Tax 6. BiAlF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ ARE BB A R T BGTA) T
(crediting): P B IBIEEEL
2015 2014
—E-IF —E—mF
Notes (US$°000) (US$000)
Htat (F%Ex) (F=7T)
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 448,705 466,815
Depreciation e 13 73,879 71,613
Recognition of prepaid land lease FERIE L3 EFRIE
payments 18] 708 721
Amortisation of intangible assets A S 16 4,461 12,154
Research and development costs N 47,512 30,791
Minimum lease payments under operating REHEREKHEEZE
leases 3,408 3,425
Auditors’ remuneration 1% £ B 3 EA 498 770
Employee benefit expense EERFFX (T8
(excluding directors’ and chief EEREAITHAR
executive’'s remuneration (Noted 8)): F 35 A (Bﬁ?8))
Wages, salaries and other benefits I% - #HaehEMmER 140,061 116,572
Equity-settled share option expense LME@%%E’J
FEAR R 1,331 =
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 11,125 11,340
152,517 127,912
Rental income on an investment property, &Y% 38 S U A EEE
net 5 (13,167) (13,270)
Government subsidies BT 4 B 5 (9,966) (663)
Foreign exchange (gain)/losses, net HNERE N (UaR),/ B8
Eam (8,035) 1,385
Impairment on items of property, Y% - BREMEEEE
plant and equipment VEREN 13 5,162 =
(Reversal)/provision for impairment of trade & 5 fE 7118 K& H b
receivables and other receivables FEWEIRRE
(B[E), B (154) 246
Write-down of inventories to net realisable #UFifF &% Al 1% E
value 2,410 3,823
Fair value gain on an investment KEME LT ER S
property (58) (1,127)
7. Finance Costs 7. B%ER
2015 2014
—E-IF —E—mF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(FZ%E7x) (F=T)
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 7,754 12,136
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8.
Remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EERESTHAENSMH

RAE ETHAR B RE B R A MEHIZE383(1)
(@) (b)* (C)RMER(AR (HEESE
MzmEE) BH) FoRpIEBENRFEE
EREEITBRABHMAOT

2015 2014

s —T—mF

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Fees e 240 69
Other emoluments: Hipgm e -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERREYAZE 161 154

Performance related bonuses ERSRIRAMARYEAT 155 139

Equity-settled share option expense LA A E M AR IER 42 =

Pension scheme contributions BRI 6 10

364 303

604 372

During the year, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 29 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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—Z-hf¥+=-A=1+—H

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8.
Remuneration (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

PR IS SRR M AT

EERBBTHRAENMH
(&)

(a) BYFHTES

FARBIIFATEENNEE

during the year were as follows: LU
2015 2014
—E-1F —E—pE
US$’000 US$'000
TEx FET
Stephen Tso Tung Chang sRAA[A] 80 23
Kwai Huen Wong, JP FHE - KMt 80 23
Long Fei Ye HEeE 80 23
240 69

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2014:
Nil).

FALEERNTFEIFEATESED
Hp® (T —mF : &) o
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EEREEITHAENHM
Remuneration (continued) (&)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the (b) BITES - FPTESKRESTH
chief executive AB
Salaries,
allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
FE - 2E ERREN  EREEN BiE
we - REVAE WA BRERX st B FHaE

Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

2015 —Z-1F
Non-executive director:  JEHITES
Mr. Takayuki Morita HEEEE = - - 5 _ 5
Chief executive: Re1TRAL
Mr. Yu Wang TREE - 161 155 37 6 359
- 161 155 42 6 364
2014 i
Chief executive: RE1IBAL
Mr. Yu Wang FRE4E - 154 139 - 10 303
Save as disclosed above, none of the directors received BRAT A EEIN MEEER-F
any emoluments during 2015 and 2014. —hER T —OFIREERIE o
There was no arrangement under which a director waived REAN - BESEELLHERESL
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. E B REE B -
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—=-a5t=A=t+t-8 N1 AHD A-

9. Five Highest Paid Employees . EEBREFER

The five highest paid employees during the year included
one director, i.e. the chief executive, (2014: one), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2014: four)
highest paid employees who are not directors of the Company
are as follows:

FRN IEBERHFEERE % (=
T—MF: —F) EF (AHR/TERA
B) EHMFBHN LXMES - F
e HepmE (C2—E: 05 X
FARRBEZNRSFHEENTMFE
L

2015 2014

—®2-H& —T-m&

US$’000 US$'000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind N 2B KRB YRR 1,153 1,214
Performance related bonuses SR IR AR TEAL 192 292
Equity-settled share option expense LA A E MBI ER X 101 -
Pension scheme contributions RIREET K 15 15
1,461 1,521

The number of highest paid employees who are not directors of
the Company and whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

FHBRATEBNLIFERNAREEDN
REFEEABLT

Number of employees

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000

1,000,001/ 7L & 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001/ 7L E2,000,0007 7T
2,000,001 7T 2,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7T % 3,000,000/ 7T
3,500,001/ 7T 24,000,000/ 7T
4,500,001/ 7T %5,000,000/8 7T

BEAR
2015 2014
—E-8F —ZT—F
3 2
— 1
1 —
4 4

During the year, share options were granted to four non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of
their services to the Group, further details of which are included
in the disclosures in note 29 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

REAN DEFEFERIFEESITRAR
M= ¥ RS RE RS B REH ARG E
R - HE—SF BN mRH
H2OWE - HABKREN A FERKE
BHREaRER  YRELBEHETE
ARAEREMBERERABRNESEESEA
ARFEENFRRITHRABNZSH
BENHMKES -
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10. Fr1S8L

10.Income Tax

Hong Kong profits were subject to profits tax at the rate of
16.5% during the year (2014:16.5%). No provision for Hong
Kong profits tax has been made as the Company and a
subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong had no assessable
income during the year (2014: Nil).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated in the Cayman Islands
is not subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) as it does not
have a place of business (other than a registered office) or
carry on any business in the Cayman Islands.

All of the Group’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC and
only having operations in Mainland China are subject to PRC
enterprise income tax on the taxable income as reported in
their PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with
relevant PRC income tax laws based on a statutory rate of 25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
with approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of the
Group’s subsidiaries, HHGrace, is qualified as an enterprise
producing integrated circuits of 0.25 pm in width and thus is
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2013 to 2017.

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in Japan
is subject to corporation tax at a rate of 25.5% (2014: 25.5%).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in the
United States is subject to federal corporation income tax at a
rate of 34% during the year (2014: 34%), as well as state tax at
8.84% (2014: 8.84%).

The major components of income tax expense of the Group are
as follows:

RERNEL G N ER16.5% (ZF—
M4 : 16.5%) WBR XA FIFH - i
RARR R —REBBEMAILH TR
AR F A S ERF A A - B
REBNERELEEG (T —OF:
&) -

HRARRERSHSEMKIZHTA
RAERSHEYERER S XA GEM
WMERRIN) REEETMER WBH
TRAIBEMMEFAEN ([RXME
Bil) e

PrEASEETBEMAEETBEAL
LENTAR - EHREREARET BN
BPOARHB P BOAE R B T2 MER
WU A2 25% H)E TE B R g R B b 5
PSR

RIETBERBEARIOEZRANETRBEE
R E  AKE—KTFRRELERD
HEBERKREETIERME S/ NR
0.25umEXEBHENEE - HEER_-F
—ZHFE Tt FHRRIG%RNER
S G

ARAREBARGEMK L R EERN TR A
JE#%25.5% (ZE— U4 : 25.5%) Hy{b
S ERHH -

KRB EERFMAE LR EEHF AR
JE1234% (—ZF — M : 34%) B FB
EMSH X K%8.84% (Z T —PU4F :
8.84%) KM FE R R BUFN o

REBFMSHAXHEZHKIBH 0
T -

2015 2014

—E-hF —F—UF

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(F=m) (F=71)

Current income tax — PRC &IPSR — 14,965 20,220
Current income tax — elsewhere = HFTS R — it = 353 29
Deferred tax (note 27) EIEFRIA (FsE27) (2,615) 7,473
12,703 27,722
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10.Income Tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates for the countries in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax

31 December 2015
—ET-RF+-A=+—H

PR IS SRR M AT

10.FriE % ()

BARBRERBDY FRARKERER
R YA TE B R 5T H A BR T AR B A9 @
BIARMS - BEERV R ENH AR

expense at the effective tax rates is as follows: XHEARIAT ¢
2015 2014
—F-HF —T—PF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%r) (F=mT)
Profit before tax AR 125,252 120,812
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEBEGTEMIE 31,313 30,203
Lower tax rates for specific provinces BEA M E BBEGH
or enacted by local authority BIERI = (12,500) (12,177)
Adjustments in respect of current tax #_E—HAfE B EATH IR A B
of previous periods (5) (4)
Profits attributable to an associate —KHE A R FE (L = A (144) (728)
Income not subject to tax BEFIA (160) (140)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR R 2 495 697
Tax losses not recognised RUERIIEEE 299 476
Temporary differences not recognised RER R =R 127 -
Adjustments in respect of deferred tax VAR iR IR A A 2
of previous years (11,560) 68
Effect of withholding tax at 5% (2014:10%) REEFRBEF AR
on the distributable profits of the Group’s A IR R F1E5%
PRC subsidiary (ZZE—4%F : 10%) FHE 4,838 9,327
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BAEEERHETER
BIIAR X 12,703 27,722

The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting to

US$259,000 for the year (2014: US$811,000) is included in

“Share of profits of an associate” in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

F A DG E N R BIR /259,000% T

—ZE— P04 : 811,000 7T) © A4

BERARX [DE—FKBE RN

11. Dividend 1.8 8
2015 2014
—F-IF —T—MmF
(US$000) (US$'000)
(F%xr) (F=71)
Proposed final-HK$27 cents (2014: Nil) FRARERE — BIRE B
per ordinary share 278N (ZT—mE - &) 36,015 -

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting (2014: Nil).

AEEEZRBBEAFTARAMR
REEBRRBFAREG L#tE (ZF—N

FE) o
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/\ZI- ﬂjJ ﬁ% Bﬁ- I:IjE —T-—RE+=—B=+—H

12.Earnings per Share Attributable to Ordinary 12.BAREERESEAEGS
Equity Holders of the Parent iz 2%
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount BREXRBINDEREG R ﬂ%ﬁﬁéﬁ
is based on the profit for the year attributable to Tvﬁ/\ﬁéﬁfﬁilﬂq/ﬁﬁﬂ REARND %
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted £71,083,871,656/% (= & — I F:
average number of ordinary shares of 1,033,871,656 853 421 1148%) ﬁﬂﬁﬁ’]bﬂﬁé?i@%{?
(2014: 853,421,114) in issue during the year, as adjusted to ISR AR L E AR AR o
reflect the rights issue during the year.
The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount BREHEERNSEDREBEE AR ER
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary T%Ef\m%ﬁ/\ﬁgfﬁﬁw/mﬂ TE o FHEE
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number KRAZE Hﬁﬂﬂﬁéiﬁ’]%(ﬁ”r S AR E
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of ABFGHEAB 2 EFRNBEEHITLEREE
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic k& *“Ffrﬁ/"éeft%%%ﬁﬁi%&?ﬁﬁ
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average FEHRABLBREATREET 2L
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at AR INE TS

no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is EREARESAFOFETIER
based on:
2015 2014
—F-HF —T—PF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F=7t) (F=5T)
Earnings B
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders Bt A T E@EZSIFE A
of the parent FE(5 % F 112,549 93,090

Number of shares

RGHEAR
2015 2014
—B-fF —F—MmF
Shares R
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R st EZ G E AR H
in issue during the year used in the basic FREBTZRER
earnings per share calculation hnE 58 1,033,871,656 853,421,114
Effect of dilution-weighted average EORAEE ISR R
number of ordinary shares:
Share options HE R 945,000 -

1,034,816,656 853,421,114
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13.Property, Plant and Equipment 13. 9% - BERRE
Plant and Office Motor  Leasehold Construction
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles improvements in progress Total
HERE ik

BF R#E  BORR RE EE HRIE &t
US§'000  US$'000  US$'000  USS'000 Us§000 US§'000  US$'000
TEn TEn e TEn TEn TEn TEn

31 December 2015 ZE-EE+ZR=1-H

At 31 December 2014 and ~ R=E-ME+=A=1+—H
H:

at 1 January 2015; RZE-1%-A-
Cost R 332,393 3,696,100 33,313 2,167 4,268 52217 4,120,518
Accumulated depreciation  ZitHTER
and impairment Wi (147195) (3359,142)  (27157)  (1,585) (853) (15960)  (3,551,892)
Net carrying amount REFE 185,198 336,958 6,156 582 3,415 36,317 568,626

At 1 January 2015, netof ~ W-E-RF—A—H"
accumulated depreciation B Z3HTE

and impairment LR 185,198 336,958 6,156 582 3,415 36,317 568,626
Additions RE - - - - - 177,564 177,564
Transfers 3 M6 130773 2443 2 5 (137) -
Disposals RE - (22) (47) (1) - - (70)
Depreciation provided EREtz

during the year it | (10653) (60171  (1,939) (216) (900) - (13879
Impairment HfE - (4,319) - - - (843) (5,162)
Exchange realignment ERRE (10,266)  (23,239) (369) (23) (167) (3835  (37899)

At 31 December 2015, netof R=E—FE+-A=1+-0"
accumulated depreciation B2 E

and impairment KRfE 164,625 379,980 6,244 344 2,501 75,486 629,180
At 31 December 2015: R-E-RFE+-A=1+-H:
Cost AR 313,550 3,603,591 33,024 2,044 4,169 91,334  4,047712
Accumulated depreciation  ZiHTE
and impaiment RHfE (148925) (3223611)  (26780)  (1,700) (1,668) (15848)  (3,418,532)
Net carrying amount ERFE 164,625 379,980 6,244 344 2,501 75,486 629,180
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13.Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 13. 9% - BERZRE (&)
Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total

BT Rtz WORE e YES RIR it
US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn i1 TEL T3 3L TEn T3

31 December 2014 “E-ME+-A=1+-H
At31December 2013and  R=E-=£+-A=t+—H
at 1 January 2014: RZZ-mE-A-R:
Cost R 325,683 3,625,942 30,508 3,291 - 89,010 4,074,434
Accumulated depreciation  ZitHTER
and impairment Wi (136,181) (3313773  (26604)  (2554) - (16,018)  (3,495,130)
Net carrying amount BEE 189,502 312,169 3,904 737 - 72992 579,304

At1January 2014, netof ~ RZE-ME-A-H
accumulated depreciation YR EHE

and impairment FRE 189,502 312,169 3,904 1737 - 72,992 579,304
Additions B = = 3,700 152 - 59,260 63,112
Transfers B 7,900 83,561 - - 4276 (95,737) -
Disposals RE - - 8) (64) = - (72)
Depreciation provided EREtR

during the year & (1156)  (5750)  (1402) (240) (855) - el
Exchange realignment 5 A% (678) (1,182) (38) &) (6) (198) (2,105)

At 31 December 2014, netof R=E-MEF-A=1-H
accumulated depreciation B2 E

and impairment KRE 185,198 336,958 6,156 582 3415 36,317 568,626
At 31 December 2014: R-E-ME+-A=1+-H:
Cost WA 332393 3,696,100 33313 2,167 4,068 52217 4120518
Accumulated depreciation  2:HE
and impairment KAE (147,195)  (3,359,142) (27,157) (1,585) (853) (15,960)  (3,551,892)
Net carrying amount ERFE 185,198 336,958 6,156 582 3415 36,317 568,626
As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s property, plant RZZE—RAF+H=+—8 &x&5H
and equipment with a net carrying value of US$507,224,000 BR M /F{E /5507,224,000 T (=ZF—H
(2014: US$458,462,000) were pledged to banks to secure the F 1 458,462,000%7T) METYME - K
Group’s banking facilities (note 25). ERREBE B FRITURSAEEH

RITEERME (MIzE25) °
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31 December 2015
—T-AFT-A=+-8

14.Investment Property

BF 755 R 3R B 5

14. REWE

2015 2014

—E-hF —F—UF

USs$’000 US$'000

FErx FET

Carrying amount at 1 January n—H—H E’JQEETE 191,533 191,098
Net gain from a fair value adjustment NEEFAEN WS 58 1,127
Exchange realignment fE WA (11,049) (692)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—H8ERAEE 180,542 191,533

The Group’s investment property is situated in Shanghai, the
PRC and is held under a medium term lease. The directors
have determined that the investment property is an industrial
property, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the

property.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on 31 December
2015 based on valuation performed by Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer, on an open market value basis.
The valuation is based on both capitalisation of income derived
from the existing tenancy with allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the property, and by making reference to
comparable market transactions.

Each year, the Group’s property manager and the chief
financial officer decide to appoint which external valuer to
be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s property manager and the
chief financial officer have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results annually when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment property is leased to a related party under an
operating lease (note 31 (a) and note 33 (b)).

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s investment
property was pledged to banks to secure the Group’s banking
facilities (note 25).

AEBOREMELNHELE - 2D
HEORE EFCERNYENMLE -
FHMERETRENERIRDE

R-ZE—HFE+-A=+—8 £%£H
MRENECRE—RAELERNE
S ERTRRFERENER

NRRAFITERET T Bl - ZEES
= THABRHRANGEETEREA
HMESERABTENT RS 5@
fgo

BF  AEENMEREERPHRER
ﬁé&?l\ﬁwﬂéﬁﬂiﬁ,ﬂ!&’iI%%E’Wl\
EfAE - BEREREHEMSN T H
BE BYUMLETAGBEREKE- K
SENMELERMBAERFRETE
BREETHER  CREEMBFR
—RfEEEEREEER -

REMERBLELAH L 7RI
(F5E31(a)F33(b)) °

RZEBE—RAFR_ZT—NF+=-_A=1
—H AEENKEYWEEER TR
TUBEAREBNFEITEERE (M
25) °
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/\ZI- ﬂjJ ﬁ% M;J- FIJE —Z=—AF+-HA=+—H

14.Investment Property (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The recurring fair value measurement for the Group’s investment
property, which is an industrial property, is made using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31 December
2014 and 2015. During the year, there were no transfers of
fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of the investment property:

14. REYME (&)

DFEER

AEBREME (RIEVE) KX _F
—HEF+TZRA=+—HBRZZE—NF+
A=t HMBHATEFETERS
BERTAI#HEE AZIR (B34%) fEH -
RER - F1IREFE KR 8 AFEG
EER  AFEMAEBEAREL (ZF
—PEE R o

TXARREMEGEMBHERMLE
RRABBHE

Significant unobservable Weighted
Industrial property Valuation techniques inputs average
/S fR{E AT EXRTABEERARE ¥4
As at 31 December 2015 Term and reversion method Estimated rental value US$11.6
R-E—hF+=A FHIRIERE (per sq.m. and per month) 11.6%7T

=+—H et HEEE
(BFHTKREA)

Term yield 7.0%

FHE R

Reversionary 7.5%

185

Long term vacancy rate 5.0%

REZEEXR
As at 31 December 2014 Term and reversion method Estimated rental value US$11.6
R-ZZE—ME+—H FHRERE (per sg.m. and per month) 11.63E7T

=t+—H et HEEE
(BEHKEEA)

Term yield 7.0%

FHAE =

Reversionary 7.5%

1857

Long term vacancy rate 5.0%

REIZ=ER

Under the term and reversion method, fair value is measured
by taking into account the rental income derived from the
existing lease with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the lease, which is then capitalised into the value at
appropriate rates.

The term value was estimated based on the existing rent,
tenancy period as stated in the lease agreement and the yield
during the term period (tenancy period). The reversionary value
was estimated based on the market rents, market yield and the
reversionary periods.
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14. REYME (&)

14.Investment Property (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the
investment property. A significant increase/(decrease) in the
long term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/(increase) in the fair value of
the investment property. Generally, a change in the assumption
made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum and
the discount rate and an opposite change in the long term
vacancy rate.

15.Prepaid Land Lease Payments

DFERER (]

A HEBEATSHEEFERLER
RIELF /(TR BEBIREMENR
TEKREENORD) - RPEEXRR
B RBEAR LT (TR) B3R
EMENRNFERNERD GEM) - —
Rims > A EEEEEDNRRE
BRE  HEFEREIRMBARLER
MEE  MEPEEXHARAE

15. TS L A & R IE

2015 2014

—F-HF —T—PF

US$’000 US$'000

FER FET

Carrying amount at 1 January m—A—BMEREE 24,914 25,726

Recognised during the year FRMER (708) (721)

Exchange realignment P& 5 A% (1,408) (91)

Carrying amount at 31 December N+ A=+—BHNEEE 22,798 24,914
Current portion included in prepayments, FENFIE - e RHEHAREY

deposits and other receivables AR BIERER (S (678) (720)

Non-current portion FERNERER 0 22,120 24,194

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments with a carrying
value of US$22,798,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
US$24,914,000) were pledged to banks to secure the Group’s
banking facilities (note 25).

R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—H @A
B £22,798,000% jT (= T — [0 4 :
24,914,000%7T) WAEEE TN LT
HHEENREER FRITURESAEE
RIRITIEERE (I5E25) °
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16.Intangible Assets 16. R EE
Process
technology
licence Software Total
TEFMEFA R st
Us$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FTEx FErx FEx

31 December 2015 —E-AF+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2014 and RZZE—UFE+=A

at 1 January 2015: =+—HER=ZZ—A1F

—A—H:
Cost D% 282,999 109,882 392,881
Accumulated amortisation B RORE
and impairment (282,999) (95,174) (378,173)

Net carrying amount BREFE - 14,708 14,708
At 1 January 2015, net of RZE—hF—H—Q8"

accumulated amortisation Bk RETEE S ORE

and impairment - 14,708 14,708
Addition INE - 1,167 1,167
Release of government grants BT B A = (2,510) (2,510)
Amortisation provided FAEL

during the year - (4,461) (4,461)
Exchange realignment B 5, 2 - (388) (388)
At 31 December 2015, net of RZZE—RF+=A

accumulated amortisation =+—H - HKRAEF

and impairment B NORE - 8,516 8,516
At 31 December 2015: RN—E—RF+—A

=+—A
Cost AR 282,999 102,090 385,089
Accumulated amortisation ZEFHESEMORE
and impairment (282,999) (93,574) (376,573)

Net carrying amount FREDHE = 8,516 8,516
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PR IS SRR M AT

16.Intangible Assets (continued) 16. BLEE (&)
Process
technology
licence Software Total
T EFATETAI B #Et
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET F3=7T FET

31 December 2014 —E—NE+=ZA=+—H
At 31 December 2013 and R-T—=F+—"A4

at 1 January 2014: =t+—BR-ZT—NF

—A—8:
Cost BN 284,025 106,261 390,286
Accumulated amortisation RETHEEORE
and impairment (281,335) (86,113) (867,448)

Net carrying amount BREFE 2,690 20,148 22,838
At 1 January 2014, net of RZE—MFE—H—8

accumulated amortisation Bk BT 8E ORE

and impairment 2,690 20,148 22,838
Additions NE = 4,105 4,105
Amortisation provided FAEL

during the year (2,680) (9,474) (12,154)
Exchange realignment P 5 A% (10) (71) (81)
At 31 December 2014, netof ~ AT —PNE+—A

accumulated amortisation =+—H ' BRERT

and impairment B NOmE - 14,708 14,708
At 31 December 2014: RZZ—WME+=H

=+—H
Cost AR 282,999 109,882 392,881
Accumulated amortisation ZEFHESEMORE
and impairment (282,999) (95,174) (378,173)

Net carrying amount FREVHE = 14,708 14,708

Certain of the Group’s intangible assets with a carrying value
of US$6,806,000 at 31 December 2015 (2014: US$10,599,000)
were pledged to banks to secure the Group’s banking facilities

(note 25).

R-E—RE+_A=+—H EE
{8 /46,806,000% Jt (= & — I £ :
10,599,000% 7)) ME TASEEFEE
EEERTRITUNERAEERNIRITE
Bt & (fsEae5) -
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17. Investment in an Associate

17. REEE DN BINIRE

2015 2014

—E-1F —E—pE

(US$°000) (US$000)

(F=m) (F=71)

Share of net assets DIHEEFE 40,833 42,030
Particulars of the material associate are as follows: FEBERBFIBOT ¢

Place and date
of incorporation/

Percentage of

registration and Paid-in  equity interest
place of business capital attributable to
MR BARAE the Group
Name of company B 2R A & RMB’000 AREBMEW  Principal activities
AR BB KRR AR¥T T REF S FEEK
Shanghai Huahong Technology PRC/ 548,000 50% Technology
Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China development and
(“Huahong Technology B, B A investment
Development”) B RIRE

EREIMEERAR AR
([FIMRER])

The financial statements of this associate were not audited by
Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst

& Young global network.

The Group’s voting power held and profit sharing arrangement
in relation to Huahong Technology Development are 40% and

50%, respectively.

The Group’s shareholding in the associate is held through a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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17. Investment in an Associate (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of the Group’s associate:

PR IS SRR M AT

17. RIEE QX RINIRE (&)

TRBANEEE SRR EER

2015 2014
—EB-AHF —FmEF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F=7t) (F=5T)
Current assets mENEE 155,597 185,530
Non-current assets B EE 49,675 19,892
Current liabilities mERE (43,096) (41,277)
Non-current liabilities FEREEE (80,510) (80,085)
Net assets FEE 81,666 84,060
Net assets, excluding goodwill FEE TBERE 81,666 84,060
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest REE RIS AR R E AR
in the associate:
Proportion of the Group’s interest REEREE R AR
in the associate Rz LB 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate, A% B 5 {h B & A 7]
excluding goodwill BESE TRESE 40,833 42,030
2015 2014
—F-1F —F-NF
(US$’000) (US$000)
(F%57x) (F=7T)
Revenue WA 22,051 21,305
Profit for the year F AR 1,922 9,712
Other comprehensive income Hip 2wz - =
Total comprehensive income ZHEKEETE 1,922 9,712
Dividend received BUAR B = (8,186)
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31 December 2015
“T—AF+=-A=+—H

18. Available-for-sale Investments

18. At HHEKRE

2015 2014

—E-HEF —T—PF

US$’000 US$'000

FErx FET

Unlisted equity investments, at cost JEETAERE - IR ANE 217,214 230,512

As at 31 December 2015, the unlisted equity investments with a
carrying amount of US$217,214,000 (2014: 230,512,000) were
stated at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the
opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The

HRAEBEAFEMGSHEAKR EF
REBEERATFTEDTENSTE S R
—E-RE+-_A=+—HFELTRE
S ABEEE217,214,000%E T (ZE—M
£ 1 230,512,000% 7T)) JHEKAEN

Group does not intend to dispose of these investments in the BRREZY - AEEFMHESNEZSE
near future. HE o
19.Inventories 19. 78

2015 2014
—®—IF —FT—mF

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Raw materials [E AR 46,109 40,808
Work in progress RS 40,391 37,162
Finished goods RIBK G 33,082 27,049
119,582 105,019

Provision for inventories FERE (12,501) (11,031)
107,081 93,988

20.Trade and Notes Receivables 20. EZERREREKRERE

2015 2014

—E-1F —ZE—pE

(US$000) (US$000)
(F%m) (F=71)

Trade receivables 2 5 EWERIA 59,746 76,638
Notes receivable JE W ZE 45,630 32,729
105,376 109,367

Impairment of trade receivables B 5 R E (1,554) (1,858)
103,822 107,509

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit and the credit period is generally 30 to 45 days,
extending up to 60 days for major customers. There is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.
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20.Trade and Notes Receivables (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables, based on the invoice
date and net of provisions, is as follows:

20. EZBUREREREE (&)

BEZ A MG 25 RUGIR (F0k B
) MERE DTN

2015 2014

—E-1F —E—pE

(US$000) (US$'000)

(F3=8) (F=71)

Within 3 months 31E A LA 55,978 73,515
3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 1,523 913
Over 6 months 618 A A £ 691 352
58,192 74,780

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

BHRWFIERERENEESHIAT

2015 2014

—E-HEF —T—PF

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(F=7t) (F=7T)

At 1 January R—HA—H 1,858 1,865
Reversal of impairment BB (210) -
Exchange realignment P& 5 A% (94) (7)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,554 1,858

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of US$1,554,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
US$1,858,000), with a carrying amount before provision of
US$1,554,000 (2014: US$1,858,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in interest
and/or principal payments and only a portion of the receivables
is expected to be recovered.

B S EBGERERERENR -
—hAFE+-A=+—B @A LERE
R B 5 U TE1,554,0005% 7T (& —
P94F : 1,858,000 7T) {EL AR - R
BRI BRE(E A1,554,000% 0 (=&
—PO4 : 1,858,000 7T) °

B R IRIE B E 5 e WRIR TS LB B
RN ERIERF B R, HAREERD
BEFEAR - IS E A Y E R e d R
1g o
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20.Trade and Notes Receivables (continued)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

2. EZEWHREREBRRE (H)

4 {8 51 = H [R) 4% AR AR (B B 5 R MR
FIERREDITAOT

2015 2014

—E-HEF —T—PF

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(F=7t) (F=5T)

Neither past due nor impaired BE AR B BRI BB 53,303 59,208
Less than 1 month past due B ERD 1 {E A 2,658 12,696
1 to 3 months past due penp=izh ECTEPE! 1,590 2,249
3 to 6 months past due wmEIsE6fE A 113 657
6 to 12 months past due #EI6E= 121 A 464 70
Over 1 year past due BER1E A £ 64 =
58,192 74,780

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
a large number of diversified customers for whom there was
no recent history of default. Receivables that were past due
but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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N.FRNRE - RERHEMLER

21. Prepayments, Deposits and Other

Receivables MIE

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HEF —T—PF
+t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—-H
USs$’000 US$'000
F=x FET
Other receivables E{th fEUGRIA 5,128 5,346
Prepayments TEfSFRIA 4,561 1,882

Current portion of TEfS T EFRIE

prepaid land lease #RNERER (5

payments (note 15) (Bds%15) 678 720
10,367 7,948
Impairment of other receivables H i FEUGRIB R E (959) (941)
9,408 7,007

The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables
are as follows:

Hip e B BB E BT

2015 2014

—F-1F —F—0F

US$’°000 US$'000

2w F=r

At 1 January n—A—H 911 697
Impairment losses recognised MR E B 1 56 246
Exchange realignment bE AR (38) (2)
As at 31 December RNt+=—B=+—8H 959 941

Included in the above provision for impairment of other
receivables is a provision for individually impaired other
receivables of US$959,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
US$941,000), with a carrying amount before provision of
US$959,000 (2014: US$941,000).

The individually impaired other receivables relate to debtors
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in both
interest and/or principal payments and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.

R EMmERFBRERERER -
—AFE+-A=+—HBnERLERE
) E i fiE Uk 578 959,0003 7T (—ZT—Y
1 941,000 7T) fEH R - RS
B B9 BR @ 18 4£959,0003%< 7t (Z T — Y
£ 1 941,000%7T) °

{8 51 1 2R R (B Y EL A B W R IR T BB B
PR RE R IERF B R, HAREERD
EHAARE - M IEHE R] Y @ &R 1) UL

A °
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22.Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged and 2. ReRRSEEYURE KR

Time Deposits REBFEXK
2015 2014
— —FmEF
USs$’000 US$'000
FErx FET
Cash and bank balances Ne NIRITLERS 202,250 439,556
Time deposits TEHITER 349,987 209,800
552,237 649,356
Pledged and time deposits: EHEA R EHER
Pledged deposits for letters of credit s A IRIRTERR (1,796) (2,583)
Time deposits with original maturity [RE AR B3R = & A
of more than three months BV BifE X (40,000) -
Cash and cash equivalents WERIRESEEY 510,441 646,773
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank R EHER - AEBOR & RIRITA
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in BRARTFEHRERDAARE ([TARE])
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to US$278,840,172 (2014: H{E - B278,840,172%F Tt (ZZE— I
US$205,717,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other % : 205,717,000 7T) - AREAT B
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange BEBRAGHMER - A - RIEBFEA
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale HoH) CHNEBIBIRHI) K (HEIE - EEX
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is NEFERE)  NEEBELESBER
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks ERRINEXZFHRITEARELRA
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. HEn &% -
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITRS BB E B RITERNEZZ
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for FHEFE - BRHNERFERDETR
varying periods of between seven days and three months SEMANEeFRAHERE=(EH
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, TE RS EHE 775K F = BREUF)
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit B RITERDERNEERF BTN
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy I 2 K RC BRI ERTT o

banks with no recent history of default.

Pledged deposits with a carrying value of US$1,796,000 as R-_ZE—HF+-_A=+—H 2&#

at 31 December 2015 (2014: US$2,583,000) were pledged to BRMEI{E A1,796,000% T (ZZF — 04 :

secure the issuance of letters of credit. 2,583,0003 7T ) W) E P17 ;A MEZE 1T
ERE -

Time deposits with original maturity of more than three months RZE—RE+_A=1+—HBRIH

with a carrying value of US$40,000,000 as at 31 December H31& A LA _E & BR M {840,000,000% 7T

2015 will mature within six months (2014: Nil). EHERBERAEAARZH (ZE—ND
F:m|) e
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31 December 2015
—Z-hf¥+=-A=1+—H

23. EZ ERY A

An aged analysis of the trade payables of the Group as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

RERSHRARZER

Br EE SRR M &

E

=B HIE - AKE
B I RNFERREOTAT

2015 2014

—E-RF —PaF

(US$000) (US$'000)

(F3=8) (F=71)

Within 1 month 1E A AR 48,588 34,796
1 to 3 months 1231E A 10,833 21,520
3 to 6 months 3Z6MEA 1,154 1,180
6 to 12 months 6= 128 A 810 1,013
Over 12 months 12{8 A A E 4,895 5,023
66,280 63,532

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on 30 to 60 day terms.

EHRNRALEER AR R—K

30K EB0KRA 45 /B °

24.0ther Payables, Advances From Customers 24. Hi B RIE » BRER

And Accruals gHER

2015 2014

—E-RE —mE

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(F==7m) (F=m)

Other payables and accruals A RIARE G ER 43,084 39,325

Advances from customers TEUWERX 11,386 13,758

Payroll and bonus payables JES S & RAEAL 30,004 19,227

84,474 72,310

The above balances are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and

repayable on demand.

A EESHEER. 28

Eo

RANERE

=y

1=
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25.Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 25. st 2R T AR
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
e —F-mE+-A=t-H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
ERA=E Maturity US$’000 ERHE Maturity US$000
(%) k] TERT (%) gL FET
Current TE
Current portion of RHRITEZH 2.05 2016 42,750 2.0-6.6 2015 81,690
long term bank ENERER (D —E-XE ZT-hF
loans - secured — HiEA
Non-current e
Secured bank loans BERRITER 12205  2017-2025 137871 20-66  2016-2018 183,031
—E-tF ZERE
EECERF 222\
180,621 264,721
2015 2014
—ZE-hF —=—mE
(US$°000) (US$'000)
GrEST) (F==7T)
Analysed into: IR
Bank loans repayable: JEEBRITER
Within one year —F R 42,750 81,690
In the second year FE_4F 44,752 62,079
Beyond third year, inclusive BIBE=5F
(BIEERME) 93,119 120,952
180,621 264,721

Included in secured bank loans were long term loans of
US$38,961,439 as at 31 December 2015 (2014: long term loans
due within one year of US$38,940,000 and long term loans of
US$41,371,000), which were denominated in RMB. All other
loans were denominated in US$.

2710 HUAHONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 24T 3 88 45 A 7]
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25.Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 25. st B RITER (&)
(continued)
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s bank loans RZE—RAFR-_ZT—NF+_F=+
were secured by the pledges of the Group’s assets with —H  AEERNRTERAERLAEE
carrying values as follows: NEEERR  EENKREENT
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—mF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%r) (F=7T)
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MR 13 507,224 458,462
Investment property KEE 14 180,542 191,533
Prepaid land lease payments TES AR E IR 15 22,798 24,914
Intangible assets B AE 16 6,806 10,599
717,370 685,508
In addition to the assets pledged above, the Group’s secured BRALBEREEN  AEBRZZ—
bank loans as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were secured RERZZE—NFT-A=+—HKHE
by the Company’s 36.23% of equity interest in its subsidiary, EIRRITER T ARATREFAAE
HHGrace. TR 71 836.23% AR HEVEIE # -
26.Government Grants 26. BUT % BY
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx F=T
At 1 January »1A1H 63,885 63,462
Received during the year FRUE 9,707 21,475
Paid to subcontractors during the year FALAFHED (49) (1,004)
Released to offset cost of sales BEA LA S 3 E AR (2,922) (11,034)
Released to offset research and B AR SH B 2
development costs B A (3,479) (5,697)
Offset with long term assets HIHREEE (10,056) (3,088)
Exchange realignment PE 5 E (3,205) (229)
As at 31 December M®12H31H 53,881 63,885
The Group received government funding for several REEWZ BT EBIE B ARG B
government-sponsored projects focusing on the research and BNE2ER ZEEBZINMAEL
development of advanced technologies. RN ©
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27. Deferred Tax 27. IEFERR 1E

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the FRNELEHRIEBEREENZEHNT :

year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities: BELEHRIBEE -
Fair value
gains on
investment  Withholding
property tax Total
REWMEN
AR EW =S FEMB et
Us$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx FEx
As at 1 January 2014 RZE—MF—H—H 319 2,208 2,527
Deferred tax charged to profit or FFRF1E Bz & AV IERE
loss during the year (note 10)  #1& (KM{3E10) 169 9,327 9,496
Exchange realignment P& H A% (1) (34) (35)
As at 31 December 2014 and N _E—NF+_—_A=+—H
1 January 2015 r—Z—H&—HF—H 487 11,501 11,988
Deferred tax charged/(credited) €RINE (5t A) Bk
to profit or loss during ROIEEFRIE (FizE10)
the year (note 10) 9 (6,722) (6,713)
Exchange realignment FE 2 (29) - (29)
As at 31 December 2015 N-_E—RF+-_A=1+—H 467 4,779 5,246

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% in
accordance with the approval from the local tax authority on a
lower rate effective from 2015 to 2017 (2014:10%).

During the year, Directors of the Company approved that any
undistributed profits of the Company and its subsidiaries as
of 31 December 2014 will not be paid as dividends to the
Shareholders. Accordingly, the Group reversed withholding
taxes on dividends distributable by subsidiaries established in
Mainland China of US$11,560,000.

212 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4T85 AR 2 )

BIE(PEARKFMBECERSRE) -
FAFR B A 3 K S R I E T EE R AN A
EZEIRAME B BRI0%EMIEINT © %
EREE_EZENF— A —HERBERIL
BAR_ZEEEtF+_A=+—HBRE
ERMAEF - Bt AEBARRFRER
WY ZETRARBE T NE—A
—HREENAEF DI SN TE
AL o i B A B SNEI IR B T )
EREEEFERSHE - UsEARK
MENHE - HAEEME  REEH
B ER —_E—REE T —+
FERORERE - BAMRE A% (=
T—[O4F : 10%) °

FR - ARREBHETERAD AR
EFRRBE-_ZE—NFE+_A=1+—
B & ERAR D B M MR TR E -
At NEBZRPEAMKT 2 FA
A AT 3k A% B 8 B T8 177 11,560,000
ETC e



27. Deferred Tax (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2015
—E-RFT-A=+—H

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

PR IS SRR M AT

27. EFEBLIE (5])

7R ) i) B s BRI A+ P B 3 48 B 7 A 1A
PSR R -

Deferred tax assets: FEEFRIBEE ¢
Write-down
of inventories
and
impairment
of receivables Accruals Tax losses Total
FEMBR
EBWFIEHE ZHEA BiEER et
US$°000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
T%5t FEx FE5 TE5T
As at 1 January 2014 R-ZE—mNFE—A—H 1,372 5,757 68 7,197
Deferred tax credited/ FRFA/(F08) Bk
(charged) to profit or loss HYEAE T IE
during the year (note 10) (FFEE10) 610 1,481 (68) 2,023
Exchange realignment PE 5 AR (6) (23) = (29)
As at 31 December 2014 R-E—NF+_H
and 1 January 2015 =t+—BR-_Z—HF
—H—H 1,976 7,215 - 9,191
Deferred tax credited/ FREFA(F0E)
(charged) to profit or loss BRRHELETRIE
during the year (note 10) (ftzE10) 338 (4,436) = (4,098)
Exchange realignment PE 5 % (159) (242) - (401)
As at 31 December 2015 R=FE—RF+=A
=+—H 2,155 2,537 - 4,692

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the

following items:

ATIERB W EERRLEHRAEE

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

—F-1F L

t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—"H

UsS$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Unused tax losses RE)RATIIEEE 4,704 2,893
Deductible temporary differences AT R =58 428,109 453,458
432,813 456,351

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses

can be utilised.

HRNERERBEEIDRAECERZRH
FRF - BAKAREA &R A AT A
NEBHZENEEER  QABRZEE
BRERRLERIREE °
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27. Deferred Tax (continued)

The temporary differences are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of the temporary
differences as it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the above items can be utilised.

28.Share Capital

27. EFEBLIE (48)

EREE AR AAKEER AR
R RRERBEH - RN AR BER &
it MR A EH EAl IR B - AL
HRERERERELEHRIBEE

28. IR 7

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—EF-HF —T—PF
+=-A=+-8 +=A=+—A”
US$’000 US$'000
F=x FET
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
1,033,871,656 (2014: 1,033,871,656) 1,033,871,656/%
ordinary shares (Z=2—1mF
1,033,871,656/% )
LiE 1,550,164 1,550,164

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as

ARABRAHLHELMT -

follows:
Number of Amount of
shares in issue  share capital
ERTROHE RAEEE
US$’000 US$°000
SEESTT SPESo
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—mF—H—H 805,176 8,052
Issuance of ordinary shares (note (a)) BITEEAR (i) 228,696 320,168
Transition to no-par value regime RZZE—NF=HA=HABREE
on 3 March 2014 (note (b)) EEERDHIE (b)) = 1,221,944
At 31 December 2014 and 2015 R-T—NER_T—RF
+=—A=+—H 1,033,872 1,550,164
Notes: Biat -

(a) In connection with the listing of the shares on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 15 October 2014, 228,696,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$11.25 per share for
a total cash consideration of HK$2,672,830,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$331,730,000), which have been credited to the
Company'’s share capital after deduction of US$11,562,000 listing
expenses.

(b) In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section
37 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, on
3 March 2014, any amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account has become part of the Company’s share
capital.
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(a) BBGER=F—FE+A+AAEHR
BrEWR_ETME + 228,696,0008% £ /%
ETEO0.01B TR (7 A 8% 11. 265 T /Y
BIEZ7T - #H 2 L182,572,830,000;%
T (162 R#9331,730,000% T) #15 _F
& 11,562,000 7T % 5+ A LK 2 a1 %
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29.Share Option Scheme 29. fE IR RE 5 &

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors, including a non-executive director and
other employees of the Group. The Scheme became effective
on 4 September 2015 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 7 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a vesting period of two to four
years and ends on a date which is not later than the expiry
date of the Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer.

ARRARRAE —ABERES (%A
gl) FEREAKEIENBERAME
Bz aEma2uE Ry sE MR -
ZETBIZ A ERBEEREARAE
2 (BRBIUFATESR) RAKEH
fiES - ZtEB_T-—HFNAEA
AR - BRIESWBUBKIER] » At E
% B R 7TFRER °

R AR IEZ AT IR 2 RIT R AR 4
HETSBAZEBRETEERQR
T2 317D 210% o PME[E+ = (@
BHIM » Zt S A ERLHERE
BRI ERITZROEE T ERER
DAMERIEHEE TN Z21% - £—F
T 8 I PR BE < B b B 78 IR R A AR
BAg A& -

AZEE  ARATHAHIEIERR
FWELEMBBEALR TERERS
FEEVS B IFAITE S  BEIN - 1
EREA+_@EARE BTFARAE
ERRIBUFNTETAREREZ
EfAT B B A £ 2 P B A 7R th AN R B A
R RE BT 20 1% B E (REK
HBEARBRMDERE) BR5008
AL AAERERRAE LBERR
#EE o

AR AARE L A BEF28H ARE R
BEMER ZBRE  WAREAER
REKIBTZBENRE - BEREZT
EHREERTE IR _E=NFREH
& FALE A RN &t Bl Eim 2 BRTAR LE ©

BREZTEERSHESET @ HETR
PRUATMEZ&RRE « ()ANARBD
RETHBRERREBIMZ KWmE :
R(iAR BN EZE G B A R E
X5 BEMIRMZ FHRTHIE
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29.Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

29. BT 8 (A])

BRI SEM S A S HEAEBRE N
RBEERAZIRERER

The following share options were outstanding under the

Scheme during the year:

5

RS E LA T BB 1 RIR Rt 8117

Weighted
average
exercise price

HK$ per share Number of
SIME  options 000
FGITEE EBREHE
(BJT) (F1)
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and R -Z—PE—HF—H -
1 January 2015 —E—pUFEt+—_A=+—H
k=—F—HF—HF—H - -
Granted during the year FARH 6.912 30,250
Forfeited during the year F R 6.912 (130)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—hFE+-_HA=+—H 6.912 30,120

During the year, 5,823,000 options were granted to directors
and key management personnel (“Tranche A”) (2014: Nil) and
24,427,000 options were granted to other employees (“Tranche

B”) (2014 Nil).

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

MNAREE 5,823,000 BRIES E T
BERFEEBEAS([F—H#]) (==
— O£ ) A K224,427,00017 B A% 4

ERTEMES (E-_#))(ZF—M@

|-

R E AR RITEBRENITEER

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: ITEHAWT

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period

BREHE TEE* 1T

’000 HKS$ per share

T4 BRET

9,953 6.912 4 September 2017 to 3 September 2022
—E—t+FhAANRAE=E-_—FHhA=AH

10,083 6.912 4 September 2018 to 3 September 2022
—E- ) \FhLAMNBE=ZE=-__FNA=H

10,084 6.912 4 September 2019 to 3 September 2022
—E-NFhAMBE-_ZT-__FHhA=H8

30,120

*

Company’s share capital.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
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29.Share Option Scheme (continued) 20. B AESHE (&)

The fair values of the share options granted during the year
were US$2,316,000 (US$0.40 each) and US$9,868,000
(US$0.41 each) for Tranche A and Tranche B respectively
(2014: Nil), of which the Group recognised a share option
expense of US$1,331,000 (2014: Nil) during the year ended 31
December 2015.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the
year was estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

FRARHBERENATFES R AE—
#£2,316,000% 7T (& 20.40% L) A K&
% — 119,868,000 7T (& §%0.413 1)
(ZZE—WF: &) EPAEEREE
—E-RFE+-A=+—HIEFE®R
B& A% 42 B 521,331,000E 7T (= — 1Y
F o) o

AR A A S A R 2 AT
0 TR B BRI S A
St 33 T A R A 1R O
o TR E BB B AE
B

Tranche A Tranche B

E—#t EHt

Expected volatility (%) TEHAR 1R (%) 497 49.7
Risk-free interest rate (%) £ [P 61 2R (%) 15 15
Annual post-vesting forfeit rate (%) FERBRIRIE(%) 13 8
Exercise multiple ITEEE 25 25
Weighted average share price (US$ per share) hi#EF % & (B T) 0.89 0.89

The annual post-vesting forfeit rate of the options is based
on the historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur.
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
30,120,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 30,120,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of US$26,863,000 (before issue
expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 30,120,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 2.9% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

BRENFERBRJNETIREBRE
“FEMELEIEFE - RO RIRATRER
HEEITER I o TR IR 45 R EE 2K
BRHWARBE BT ACSERES
8o

EHMERBIRETEMARFERT

o

[IN=S

R¥REHIR - N2 | #F30,120,00017
R R R BIBEZETEITTE - BEAR
AIIREF A IR AR GRS - BEAITE W ARITE
B IR #E ] BE = B EUEE/MNE$ 730,120,000
A& AN A 7] 3 i Ax K 38 hn Ak 48 26,863,000
Er CRNBREITER) °

RHEZEMBHRERAE - XRARHESR
30,120,00017 & A& # (5 K AR & 7% &t &
T HZBAARRAEETROMNLG
2.9% °
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30.Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 151 of
the financial statements.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, which are applicable to the
Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, profits of PRC subsidiaries,
as determined in accordance with the applicable accounting
rules and regulations in the PRC, are available for distribution
in the form of cash dividends to the Company after PRC
subsidiaries have (1) satisfied all tax liabilities; (2) provided for
losses in previous years; and (3) made appropriations to the
statutory reserve funds. The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are required to appropriate not less than 10% of their profit after
taxation to the statutory reserve funds until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of their registered capital.
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—z-af+=A=+-8 ) AHB A-

31.Operating Lease Arrangements

(@) As lessor
The Group leases its investment property (note 14) to
Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Huali”), under an operating lease arrangement, with a lease
term of 20 years. The terms of the lease generally also
require the tenant to provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenant falling due as follows:

N EEHERH

(a) FEREAEA
AEBRE-AKLEHEER  H
Hig&EW* (14) BB T LEE
WMEFERAR (T LBEN])
HH 205 - s AV R — AR IR
HE AT AR E B H O E #7E
SRBELERE -

R-ZBE—RE+=-A=+—8" &K
EERBETAIBELEERHONAT
HAR R WOR AR A B R 2R SRR & 3K

THMRZRT ¢
2015 2014
—E-1F —E—pE
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Within one year —FR 12,293 13,046
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EZFRFT (BIEEERWMFT) 49,173 52,183
More than five years BARF 113,784 133,943
175,250 199,172

The Group was advanced the future rentals from Shanghai
Huali of US$5,456,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
US$18,688,000).

R-_ZE—RF+_A=+—8"
AEERE EBEHBENBERA
$©5,456,000% T (Z &F — I F :
18,688,000 7T ) °
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31 December 2015
“T—AF+=-A=+—H

31. Operating Lease Arrangements (continued) . REHERH (&)

(b) As lessee

(b)

The Group leases certain of its office and dormitory
properties under operating lease arrangements, negotiated
for terms of one to twenty years with an option for renewal
after the end of lease terms, at which time all terms will be
renegotiated.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

ERAEBA

AEBERBELEHELHEAAET
MRERBEEVE  KHEAHNS
—E=+F AREHERRERTIA
B - [P R ERTIH RS o

R-ZBE—RE+=-A=+—8 " &K
EERBETAIBELCERHONAT
HEEMNRRREAER AL
R

2015 2014

—E-1F —E—pE

USs$’000 US$'000

FErx FET

Within one year —FR 1,912 1,709
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_ZFRF (BIEEEMF) 6,586 6,599
More than five years BARF 20,210 23,097
28,708 31,405

The Group advanced the future rentals to Huahong Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Huahong Real Estate”), a subsidiary of
Huahong Technology Development, of US$1,537,000 as at

31 December 2015 (2014: US$3,295,000).

32.Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in Note
31(b) above, the group had the following capital commitments

at the end of the report period:

RZBE—RAFE+_A=+—H K
EERESETEERR AT ([
MEX] EUNEERNTAA)
F8141,537,000F 7t (ZZF — g4 -
3,295,000%7T) HARKHESE -

32, FKIE

B £ 3T RE31(b) ATt A & TH B AHESD
AREBERREMREUTEARALE -

2015 2014
—E-HEF —T—PF
(US$000) (US$000)
(F=7t) (F=7T)
Contracted, but not provided for: DETHA) - BAREE
Property, plant and equipment W - B MEEAE 26,511 24,176
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33.Related Party Transactions and Balances 3B. AW AERZ REER
(a) Name and relationship (a) BRERER
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
S A8 BEAKBEHBR
Huahong Group and its subsidiaries
ZENEEREFATA
— Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (*Huahong Group”) the holding company of Hua Hong
— bgE (R8) BRAR ([FEUER]) International Inc.,
AT BIFR BV E AR A 7]
— Hua Hong International Inc., (“Huahong International”) Shareholder of the Company
— EMEEBR AR ([EMEE ) RARIRER
— Shanghai Huahong Zealcore Electronics Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of Huahong Group
(“Huahong Zealcore”) LB T QA

— PEETBEERERARAR ([FETRFK])
— Shanghai Hongri International Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Hongri”)  Subsidiary of Huahong Group

— B RBEKREFARALR ([4H ) EHEET A
— Shanghai Integrated Circuit Research and Subsidiary of Huahong Group
Development Center (“ICRD”) EIEE T AT

— PBERERMEP O ([EKEEME]D
— Shanghai Hua Hong Jitong Smart System Co., Ltd. (“Jitong”)  Subsidiary of Huahong Group

— LBEM B EZFROBRAE ([FHE)) I EE T QA

NEC Corporation (“NEC”) Shareholder of the Company
RATIRRE

— NEC Management Partner, Ltd. (“NEC Management”) Subsidiary of NEC
NEC+ A A

SAIL and its subsidiaries

EEBNREFAT

— Sino-Alliance International Ltd. (“SAIL International”) Shareholder of the Company
PN/NG] )3

— Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Huali”) ~ Subsidiary of SAIL

~ LEENMETABRAR ([ LEEA] IS0 BN

— QST Corporation (“QST”) Subsidiary of SAIL

— PEWERRERAR ([WERE]) BT AR
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31 December 2015
—F-RFEt-A=t—H

33.Related Party Transactions and Balances 33. Ak H X 7 M A5ER (8R)
(continued)
(a) Name and relationship (continued) (a) EWRER (M)

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

S A8 BEAKBHBR

INESA and its subsidiaries

BEEERAEFAF

— INESA (Group) Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of INESA
(“INESA”) BEERET AR

— EESE (KE) GRAR ([BREXE D

— Shanghai Nanyang Software System Integration Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of INESA
(“Nanyang Software”) EEEE TR

— bEEFERURRERERAR ([FARMF])

— Shanghai Nanyang Wanbang Information Subsidiary of INESA
Technology Service Co., Ltd. (“Wanbang IT”) EEEET AT

— bEmABHRMRMERAR ([8BE 4 ])

Shanghai Huahong Technology Development Co., Ltd. Associate of the Group

(“Huahong Technology Development”) REEHEE AR

PEFANKBRERAT ((FINEER])

Huahong Real Estate
HEITEH

Subsidiary of Huahong Technology
Development
FE R ER T AR

Shanghai Huajin Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Huajin”)  Subsidiary of Huahong Technology

PEERYEERERAT ([Z8R]) Development
FEMRHEERTF AR
CEC and its subsidiaries
FEEFREFAF
— China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”) Shareholder of Huahong Group
—HEAEFEEEXZEEERAR ([FEEF]) T R E AR
— CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd. (“Huada”) Subsidiary of CEC
—IRPEEAEFRABREMERR ([FEKX]) HEEFFAF
— Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of CEC
(“Shanghai Huahong IC”) FEEFFAR
— EBENERERERETAR ([ LEFETEXERK])
— Beijing Huahong IC Design Co., (“Beijing Huahong IC”) Subsidiary of CEC
— R EMEKEERFEREEAR ([IEREMEKERE]) HEEFFAF
— Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Belling”) Subsidiary of CEC
— BRERHBRAR ([ LBR%E]) HEEFFAF
— Hylintek Limited (“Hylintek”)* Subsidiary of CEC
— BEBERRAR ([HFFE]) HEEFTFAF
*  Agreement with SAIL International whereby Hylintek Limited * HSAIL International#& ;] hag - UL EBEE
agreed to sell and SAIL International agreed to purchase EER L AJAIE L EMSAIL Internationalla]
64,010,100 shares of the Company (the “Share Purchase”). BB B64,010, 1008 K 2~ ] iR 17 ([BE K &
Following completion of the Share Purchase, Hylintek ceased H]) o THKERFIEE  EEFER-F—
to hold any shares in the Company as of 12 May 2015. AFAA 1= HTEHELRRGIFMREG -
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33.Related Party Transactions and Balances
(continued)

(b) Related party transactions
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with related parties during

PR IS SRR M AT

B.BEALRZ KRR (F)

(b) BABAT RS

BREMBERREMBOMPER
P RAERIN  REBRFEANE LR
BITEITATEARS :

the year:
2015 2014
—E-HEF —T—PF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%r) (F=mT)
Sales of goods to related parties (note (i) MRS HEER (M)
Huada FEKR 25,495 45,761
Shanghai Huahong IC EBEENER 10,953 10,408
Shanghai Belling BB 7,951 5,323
Hongri 4T H 526 1,021
Huahong Zealcore* By 9,929 11,303
ICRD SR E R 8,140 6,204
Beijing Huahong IC b REA SRR E I - 705
QST* wERR 911 408
Shanghai Huali EBER = 7
Purchases of goods from related parties B TEES® (FFEd))
(note (ii))
Hylintek BAEEE 5,837 4,928
Hongri iTH 4,859 3,566
Huahong Zealcore? FEHT B 495 448
Jitong FTim 4 18
NEC Management? NEC Management* 726 559
ICRD SRR - 1
Service fee income from related parties 28 5 B8 5 HIARFS B ULA
(note (iii)) (B (i)
QST BERE! 445 1,059
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33.Related Party Transactions and Balances

(continued)

(b) Related party transactions (continued)

31 December 2015
“T—AF+=-A=+—H

B.BEALRZ KRR (F)

(b) BBLXRZ ()

2015 2014
—Z-hF —ZE—mEF
(US$000) (US$'000)
(F%r) (F=5T)
Service fees charged by related parties BB 7 WEXH AR TS &
(note (iv)) (B 3E(iv))
Huahong Real Estate Bl = 2,176 —
INESA* EEEE! 357 25
Nanyang Software* B 25 214
Wanbang IT# & F R = 39
Huajin* Rt 201 205
Rental income from a related party R E R RS WA
(note (iii)) (B 5 (ii) )
Shanghai Huali g 12,793 13,270
Rental expense charged by RaE T WER S M
a related party (note (iv)) (K 7E(iv))
Huahong Real Estate* FEITE E 1,622 1,653
Expense paid on behalf of a related party BB X HRIF S (FEE(v))
(note (v))
Shanghai Huali EBER 26,327 25,614
Entrusted loans ZEER
Huahong Technology Development — EMRHRER — FE
interest = 324

#  The related party transactions in respect of items denoted with
“#” above also constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Note (i): The sales of goods to the related parties were made
according to the prices and terms agreed between the

related parties.

Note (ii): The purchases of goods from the related parties were
made according to the prices and terms offered by the

related parties.

Note (iii): The rental income and service fee income from related
parties were received according to the prices and terms

agreed between the related parties.

Note (iv): The rental expense and service fees charged by related
parties were paid according to the prices and terms

agreed between the related parties.

LXRFIEE [#] TR 3 5 TR
1 P _E T 42 Bl 5 14AZ BT SR UE 8975

HteE(i) -

Kiat(ii)

Bfa(iii)

Kiat(iv)

Note (v): The expense paid on behalf of the related party is
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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Kiat(v) -

1] BB 77 ] B 19 B iy T3 1R
75 BT 155 JE 1Y 18 15
1R E

B BE R 77 B 7 K dn T3 1R
IR B 77 HE (A (B 15 R 1
IEH -

X G B A2 WA K
HRTE B WA T3 4R 15 £ [ B
T I REAIETE R AR

BE 7 R 6 1 2 3% R
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33.Related Party Transactions and Balances
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Non-cash related party transaction

In 2014, HHGrace invested RMB10.5 million in QST in the
form of intellectual property transfer in accordance with the
binding term sheet signed by HHGrace on 18 August 2012.
On 18 May 2014, QST and HHGrace signed an agreement
regarding certain products and services provided by
HHGrace to QST for the period from 1 January 2013 to
31 March 2017, including wafer products and masking,
technology development and maintenance services, in
exchange for the aforesaid intellectual property.

Other related party transaction

In 2011, HHNEC and Huahong Group entered into a cash
pooling arrangement. Under such arrangement, HHNEC
and Huahong Group entered into RMB900,000,000 loans
with each other. According to the PRC Contract Law, the
agreement and the mutual understanding of both parties,
the receivables and payables resulting from loans under
such cash pooling arrangement can be set off. The net
balance at 31 December 2013 was zero. On 9 June 2014,
HHNEC and Huahong Group settled the receivables and
payables on a net basis and terminated such loans.

PR IS SRR M AT

B.BEALRZ KRR (F)

(c) kREMBLRS

R-FB—MF - FARARERZ
Z-—FN\ATNBRITHAHR
HEWARIAEZANBEENT A
A EMEIRE ARKE1,0608 7T °
RZZE—NMFREA+N\B - WER
REFURNAELRZIR -F—
=#—-—R—BET—+HF=A=
T BUHRRYERRRERET
Em R RE R k- B ARAE
B R LR BT B B A v AR T
HREN bl KGR EEHE

(d) EftEAB LR 5

RZF——F  FEUNECEHE &
BT RS ML - BIBZTHE
EINECHETSEEHIIZAR
BOETLER - REFHERNE - &
FTRBHEEBE TR ZASmR
HETHERAEERNEKRIER
ERRIAR THE - — T —=F 1
A=+ —BREFEEHRAETST - RN
T—OFNNANE  FHUNECHZE
I BRI FRAEA TR BFIER
FETRIR - WIRIEZEFEK °
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33.Related Party Transactions and Balances B.BHMAE RS REERR ()

(continued)

(e) EREABET B RERERE

(e) Outstanding balances with related parties

2015 2014
—E-1F —E—pE
(US$000) (US$000)
(F%x) (F=7T)

Amounts due from related parties & LAt B Bt 75 SRR
Huada EYN 7,470 21,589
Shanghai Huahong IC EBEENER 3,171 4,149
Shanghai Huali EgER 8,726 7,056
Huahong Zealcore B =i 2,724 5,303
Shanghai Belling BB 1,265 1,411
Hongri 4T H 90 242
ICRD SR ERIFE 9 128
INESA EEEE 1 -
Huahong Real Estate E 1,537 3,295
QST WERH 289 5
25,282 43,178

Amounts due to related parties JE <t BB 75 5K A
Shanghai Huali LEER 5,456 18,688
INESA ZEEE 19 -
Hylintek BAEE 960 1,486
Hongri 4T B 630 783
Huahong Zealcore AT B 153 114
NEC Management NEC Management 222 110
Huahong Real Estate EATEZE 246 1,774
Jitong At 4 B
Huajin =R 8 -
Shanghai Belling Habis3=:-) = 1
QST WERHR 519 891
ICRD SN BRI 748 1,159
8,965 25,006

1R MM GRS EER - £

Balances with the related parties were unsecured, non- £
A8 R [E 2 AR o

interest-bearing and had no fixed repayment terms.
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33.Related Party Transactions and Balances B.BHMAE RS REERR ()
(continued)
(f) Compensation of key management personnel of the () *EEFTEEEAENHE
Group
2015 2014
—E-RF —F—F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F=5r) (F=%=7T)
Short term employee benefits R BB 2,704 2,596
Pension scheme contributions RN FHEIHR 36 37
Equity-settled share option expense LARE &5 45 L B B AR M B 2 212 -
Total compensation paid to INTEEEBAEN
key management personnel i< 4258 2,952 2,633
Further details of director's remuneration are included in EEHME— S EHBEHRTBR
note 8 to the financial statements. M8 o
34.Financial Instruments by Category M. EZERESNEMTA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EHeRmIAENBEHERNEREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: W
Financial assets — loans and receivables SREE - BERRERE

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

—E—REF —E—UFE

+=A=+t-8 +=A=t-§

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Trade and notes receivables B o RENIAE R ENERE 103,822 107,509
Financial assets included in prepayments, FFATERFIE - e R

deposits and other receivables (note 21) Hup el IE s

SRAE (HiE21) 4,169 4,405

Due from related parties FE UG BE RS 5 FRIB 25,282 43,178

Pledged and time deposits 2K N F R 41,796 2,583

Cash and cash equivalents HWERRESEEY 510,441 646,773

685,510 804,448

Financial assets — available-for-sale financial assets cRMEE -IHEESREE

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

—E—REF —E—UFE

+=B=+t-8 +=A=t-§

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 217,214 230,512
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34.Financial Instruments by Category M. ZERHET>HEMIT A (&)
(continued)

Financial liabilities — at amortised cost SHMAE - REBHAX
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E-1F —ZE—puE
+=-A=+-8B +=—A=+—A”
USs$’000 US$'000
F=x FET
Trade payables B ST FRIE 66,280 63,532
Financial liabilities included in ST AE MR FRIE -
other payables, advances from TEWER R R E B/
customers and accruals (note 24) TREE (MFE24) 41,578 35,999
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRIRITER 180,621 264,721
Due to related parties FESTREES 5 IB 8,965 25,006
297,444 389,258
35.Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of B.EMIANAFERLAFE
Financial Instruments [ &%
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial rEBERTA (TRERAERATF
instrument, other than those with carrying amounts that BEABEENERITE) HEEERA
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: FEHIAT
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE A
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RfF —E—E —E-hF —E e
US$°000 US$'000 Us$’000 US$'000
SFESoE F=T FERx F=x
Financial liability =R
Interest-bearing bank sEEIRTTHER
borrowing 38,961 - 31,627 -
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35.Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of B.EMITAENATFERATFEE

Financial Instruments (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged and time deposits, trade and notes
receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in other payables, advances from customers and
accruals, amounts due from/to related parties and the current
portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance department reports directly to the chief
financial officer. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with
the board of directors annually for annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings has been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 was assessed
to be insignificant. Management has assessed that the fair
value of the non-current interest-bearing bank borrowings of
the Group approximates to their fair value due to their floating
interest rates, expect for the loan disclosed above.

& (&)

EEEERHEREAREEEY BXR
RAREHER  BHRUFAREKRRE
B BSEMAE  FABMNRE &
EREMEUFENEREE - fFAR
fEMNFR - BRERLEGHEERANE
MEE - R RN REIE T IR - 5T
RITERNRBBOORTE BREH
HHEEERSE  TERARZRELA
BRGNS -

AEBETUMBLERENT B A
EEFeMIARTEAENBRLE
Fe-e WBEHBERAMBAERS - 1
EREAHY VBB IOMERTANE
BEEHVEFHETERNEEHAK
B hERMBAERRRILE - HE
BRENERBEEEEFAH AR A
EITFEPEHRR -

CREENABENATERKERNESR
BARe (MIEFERBFREE) PAI
RMEBIANESREIK - A ATE
THERIA T A R R3%

ATERITERMIERSDBLHAFET
ZRHEBAEEREUGS - EERREF
R E| HIHARR M T B /IR A FI K 8L 3R TE 21
ARBEEREMTE - AEBEFEHER
B RZTE—RAFR-_ZT—NF+=A
= +—HEBSMFERITERTRELD
ERRITAK - ARIRFB AR BB
B {h R AN EENIETRE S IB1T
EBERHATFEER@EMRS  ELRE
FRERAN o
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36.Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans, cash and short term deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities, such as trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a floating interest rate. The Group’s policy is to
manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate
debts.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings).

36. Bt

BEREEEERBER

AEENIZERTABRERITER

ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%fﬁ°&\iﬂlﬂmix
REDR/RAEENLEEREES - &K
BMEZREZAEBELELNEMER
BERAE  WEHRHEMBEYWRIEI

5B 5 M EMBEN IR

AEEEBRTAMELNEERR ST
KE - HNERR - FERBRERBE
RR - EEZTERFRBEEEREZ
FEBREBUR - B BRI T3 -

MZE R
AEEEEEH TSN EEFEREE R
AEBIZF BN R BT SRITER
B - ARENBRRS  UEERFZE
EBAE T N EEN SRR -

TRETEMBEREMEERIFTENIS
)RT AEBEBAGE N (ZFBH R E

M E) HMENRE R E BN
@f

(Decrease)/

Increase/ increase in

decrease in profit before

interest rate tax

MEEH i An =R

T B W), &

US$’°000

FEx

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_ZE—hF +1%/-1% (1,417)1,417
TZA=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2014 HEz—_T—WF +1%/-1% (2,647)/2,647
TZA=1T—HILEE

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposure. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by its significant
subsidiary operating in Mainland China in US$ other than the
subsidiary’s functional currency, which is RMB. During the
year, approximately 49% (2014: 52%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the subsidiary making the sale, whilst 64% (2014: 66%) of
costs of sales are denominated in the subsidiary’s functional
currency.
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AEBEBRZ ZIMNERR - ZERBE
SEEEFRAMEENEE TN AU
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36.Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities):

B EEBEEABEREXK

(%)
SR (8)
TRETEMALCERRSTENE

ST R IR HIRE R A & B AR A
(HREREERABEQFEES) HA
REEXNEEAEZBNGRE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit before

USS rate tax
ExAE BLAEF
EH (TH) % GR2)
US$’000
FErx
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE_ZT—hF
+ZA=t+—HIEFE
If US$ weakens against RMB WETHARBRE 5% (5,170)
If US$ strengthens against RMB mETHARBHE (5%) 5,170
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—MFE
TZA=1T—HILEE
If US$ weakens against RMB ST H AREEE 5% 2,508
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHARBHE (5%) (2,508)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties and related parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and
notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from related
parties and pledged and time deposits included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. The Group has no other financial assets which
carry significant exposure to credit risk.

FERRE
AEEERERTREERFNFE=
NABIRS - NREBNBERE - A
BEREEETARSNEFPHABBE
RZERRF o I - R FE S UK
RAEMETTERR  MAKRENZRAR
WARERX e

HEVBRARRARE MRSEEY -
B 5 MR K R 1B M AT AT R
B Be REMEYGRENESREE
FE U5 BB 77 SR A K B R N E I R
MR EE R AR B 5 S B & 2 P E R
MERAREERR - AEBEYEEMFE
EAGERBNEREE -
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36.Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

.U BEABMEEEBREREE
(%)

RBE S E M

AEBWBRERAERERR K RBHR
BESFR  UBRESAEHNHR S
BRETZCHEBES EANBE X
RHEE  UWERHESHEERSRSES

FEEE
DE-S

RBEHRER  ~EEeRBERES
KRB KM B BER AT -

On Less than
demand 3 months
RER  HR=MEA
Us$’000 US$°000

3to 12 1to Over
months 5 years 5 years Total
=Et=fiA -Z1f BENE )

US$°000 US$’000 Us$’000 US$°000

TER TE TER T TE5 TER
31 December 2015 —E-RF
T=ZA=+-H
Interest-bearing ATEBRITER
bank borrowings - 839 45,170 124,287 18,979 189,275
Trade payables B S ENFE 6,859 59,421 - - - 66,280
Financial liabilities included A Efh R Zx
in other payables, T8 - TAURER R
advances from RER-E R
customers and accruals ~ &®ERE 41,578 - - - - 41,578
Amounts due to related JEft BB 7 700R
parties 8,965 - - - - 8,965
57,402 60,260 45170 124,287 18,979 306,098
31 December 2014 —E2-mE
T=A=t-H
Interest-bearing ATRRITER
bank borrowings - - 83,871 197,619 - 281,490
Trade payables BHERTE 7,216 56,316 = - - 63,532
Financial liabilities included 5t A Efth FEf 2k
in other payables, 15 - TUERR
advances from RE-BRR
customers and accruals ~ SFIEE 35,999 = = = = 35,999
Amounts due to related  JEfTEEEE S FUE
parties 25,006 - - - - 25,006
68,221 56,316 83,871 197,619 - 406,027
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36.Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total equity attributable to owners of the
parent plus net debt. The Group includes, within net debt, trade
payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank
borrowings and amounts due to related parties, less cash and
cash equivalents. The gearing ratios as at the end of each of
the reporting periods were as follows:

B EEBEEABEREXK

(%)

BEXER
AEEEAEENEERRR  #EX
SENBEKERENRERRIFNER
R UXFHEEBRERBRREER
K1t °

AEBRBEBEMN N E S ETE N HE
HERRE - BERAHBELARE
AREERGFHERNT THRRERNKRE
AR R R E B AR BEITHA - NEER
SAEFINEBIEMNE E AR RKBR - NF
N AEEEREANBR  BERIE
it & -

AEBAEERBLREEER  BE
BELXIRFBERUASRRESR AR
HRESABINFAGESE - AEEK
BHRNHIA  HMEMNREAREREE
A FEEERTTRERR - BRI 5 SRR
BRRE LIRS FEWFAFEE - TR
SHRARNEERBL AT :

2015 2014

=T—HF —T—mF

US$’000 US$'000

FErx FET

Trade payables B S IR 66,280 63,532
Other payables and accruals (note 24)  Hit et zEm N EEER (Hizt24) 73,088 58,552
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRRITER 180,621 264,721
Amounts due to related parties FESTREESR 5 A 8,965 25,006

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERBEESEEY (510,441) (646,773)

Net debt FAE (181,487) (234,962)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &2 RI#%EA AE(E#EZS 1,490,690 1,465,479
Capital and net debt BARNGFEE 1,309,203 1,230,517
Gearing ratio BEAMBHE (13.86%) (19.09%)

The negative gearing ratio as at 31 December 2015 was mainly
due to the IPO proceeds received in October 2014, which had
not been fully utilised as of 31 December 2015.

R-E-AF+_A=+—HEEAR
KEGAYTERRA _T—MFE+A
ESMERAHABEMSHKA  ZERK
BEE_T-RAFt-_A=T—HHRK
TEHA -
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37. Event after the Reporting Period 37.

On 22 March 2016, the directors proposed a final dividend of
HK$27 cents per ordinary share approximately US$36,015,000
for the year ended 31 December 2015, which is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (note 11).

38.Statement of Financial Position of the 38.

Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

RERREE

RZE—XNE=ZA=-+=-H =53
ENBE-_ZT—RAF+-_A=+—HIt
FENAPRE SR T @AT27E - 2
5+ A#936,015,0005 7T © HEAEFAR A
%%ﬁf@&%ﬁ@ﬁ@t%&ﬁﬂﬁ
E (f3E11) o

RN AR BARR R

AR B REMROPBARKER
SR

& o

7

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—E-HF —F—OF
+=A=+—H8 +=—HA=+—8H
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KERTRAA] 1,551,379 1,229,996
Total non-current assets BN EELRER 1,551,379 1,229,996
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Trade and notes receivables B 5 UG IA K RN R IR 2,510 =
Prepayments, deposits TERRIE - e
and other receivables K E At e Y Gk IE - 1,577
Due from a subsidiary FEUWF R RIFRIE 998 7,140
Cash and cash equivalents BERESEEY 6,237 327,811
Total current assets MENEEERE 9,745 336,528
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Other payables, advances from B FOE - TRUIRERF X
customers and accruals L E A 134 82
Due to subsidiaries FEF A TIEIA 84,563 89,535
Total current liabilities mE B BB 84,697 89,617
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS % (&fE) &&E 2% (74,952) 246,911
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERE
LIABILITIES RARBEE 1,476,427 1,476,907
Net assets BEE 1,476,427 1,476,907
EQUITY s
Share capital AR 1,550,164 1,550,164
Reserves (note) & (KIEE) (73,737) (73,257)
Total equity FEREAE 1,476,427 1,476,907
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Suxin Zhang
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Director
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38.Statement of Financial Position of the 38. QBB MR RK ()
Company (continued)

Note: Biet -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AR EJRI R B Za T -
Share Other Share option Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
IR AR ME Hihf#e  BREMRE -4 et
US$’000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$’000
FER FER FERL TER FER
(note 28 (a)(i))
(Fft=E28 (a)(i))
As at 1 January 2014 W-ZT—mE—A—A 1,221,944 (68,260) - (2109) 1,151,575
Transition to no-par value BEZERERNHIE
regime (1,221,944) - - - (1,221,944)
Loss for the year FREE = = = (2,888) (2,888)
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—mNFE+—-A
and 1 January 2015 =t+—Bk-FT—AHF
—B—H - (68,260) - (4,997) (73,257)
Equity-settled share option VAR R 45 H AR R AE Lo
arrangements - - 1,331 - 1,331
Loss for the year FREE - - - (1,811) (1,811)
As at 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RF+=A
=+-A - (68,260) 1,331 (6,808) (73,737)
39.Approval of the Financial Statements 39. Bf B IR AVRLE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for Eif%ﬁ&ff E\E‘/\‘\:?:/‘_\fz A=+=H
issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2016. BEZwHtAERTRTE -
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Financial Summary

BB

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements is set out

TXEFNARER &I A AT BRFREANFRE
NREE BENRFERESNRE - 64
EM AR EE T REELTHHRE

below.
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-—A=1+—HLEFE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-AF —_T-WF T—=F T—_F _T——F
US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTEx FET FET FET FET
RESULTS ES
REVENUE SHEWA 650,131 664,586 584,719 571,480 609,844
Cost of sales HEKAR (448,705)  (466,815)  (459,270)  (453,559) (459,172)
Gross profit EF 201,426 197,771 125,449 117,921 150,672
Other income and gains e NS g 42,717 23,886 30,605 26,492 50,998
Fair value gain on an WEYHER
investment property N EWE 58 1,127 2,095 944 1,322
Selling and distribution HE&
expenses DIHE A (7,292) (7,208) (8,052) (8,831) (10,290)
Administrative expenses BEER (104,855) (85,053) (69,043) (55,097) (61,327)
Other expenses HihE A 9) (2,433) (199) (448) (5,618)
Finance costs WEER (7,754) (12,136) (16,479) (16,928) (19,168)
Share of profits AE—R
of an associate i NG vl 961 4,856 6,437 3,619 =
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BiADE=F 125,252 120,812 70,813 67,672 106,589
Income tax expense FriSHif X (12,703) (27,722) (8,964) (7,993) (10,966)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 112,549 93,090 61,849 59,679 95,623
Attributable to: LA S I8 ¢
Owners of the parent ISTNEIEZZ =N 112,549 93,090 61,849 59,679 83,881
Non-controlling interests By Tay - = = = 11,742
112,549 93,090 61,849 59,679 95,623
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—2-HF —F-0OF —T-—=fF —F-——F —FT——F
Us$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTEx FET FET FEIT FET
Total assets BERE 1,911,733 1,990,069 1,647,617 1,607,974 1,672,162
Total liabilities BfE®EE (421,043) (524,590) (591,398) (644,217)  (769,889)
Non-controlling interests eI R - - - - -
1,490,690 1,465,479 1,056,219 963,757 902,273
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